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Our Envisioned 
Future

Vision

To be the nation's leader in 
providing most trusted and best 
quality timber and timber based 
products

Mission

To Produce timber and timber 
based products for our customers 
through the knowledge and 
skills gained over the time and 
to contribute to the national and 
environmental demands of 
Sri lanka
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We are 
State Timber Corporation

"In every waking
moment,

Sincerity commitment
and

Innovative concepts
 keep us going towards

the
Path of success"
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G oing towards 
Success . . .

G oing towards 
Success . . .

Beginning
The State Timber Corporation is a state owned business organization
which was established in 1968. It was incorporated by Hon. Minister

of Lands, Irrigation and Power under the provisions of State Industrial
Corporation Act No. 49 of 1957 and thereafter by the Gazette

Notifications No. 178/10 of 5.2.1982 and Gazette No. 11907 of
26.6.2009. The initial capital of the Corporation was Rs. 2.5 million.

Today
The head office of State Timber Corporation is housed in

“Sampathpaya”, Battaramulla and which being the core of the
Corporation with its sub divisions having been located islandwide.

State Timber Corporation earns its revenues primarily through
manufacture and sale of timber products. STC practices sustainable
forest harvesting in line with the sustainable forestry program with

Forest Department.

We endeavour to produce the highest quality timber products
with the best possible service. For the past 46 years, State Timber

Corporation has been on top of the industry in timber and timber
based manufacturing. Over those years we’ve become the accepted

benchmark for Top- Class products.
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“We were rewarded for various reasons because of
our excellence in commitment and that will show our

sustainability in all aspects”

jd¾Isl jd¾;dj 2013 - rdcH ±j ixia:dj 

iïudk yd úfYaI f.!rj ;s<sK'

yß; ueflda iïudkh 2008 - Y%S ,xld ckudOH ix.uh 

jk yd mßir wOHdmkhg jQ odhl;ajh fjkqfjka 
iïNdjkd yd we.hSï ueflda iïudkh 2010 
Y%S ,xld ckudOH ix.uh' 

2009  “oehg lsre<” m%o¾Ykfha jvd;a ks¾udKYS,S 
m%o¾Yk l=áh'

cd;sl jdKsc uKav,h msßkuk rka iïudkfhka 
wLKavj 2009" 2010 yd 2011 jir ;=<§  rdcH 
oej ixia:dj msÿï ,nk ,§'

20112009 2010

cd;sl jdKscH uKav,h u.ska meje;ajQ 2013 cd;sl jHdmdr 
úYsIaG;aj iïudk Wf<f,aoS rdcH oej ixia:dj rdcH wxYfha 
ksIamdok fjkqfjka msfok úYsIaG l=i,;d iïudkfhka msÿï 
,nk ,oS'

2009

2010

2011
2012

^“iEu wdldrhlgu wmf.a úYsIaG lemùu 
fmkakqï lsÍu ksid wm iïudkhg md;% jQ j.hs'”& 

43

State Timber Corporation received the Silver Award 
for the State Sector - Manufacturing at the National 
Business Excellence Awards 2014 presented by the 
National Chamber of Commerce. 

State Timber Corporation received the Merit 
Award for the State Sector - Manufacturing 
at the National Business Excellence Awards 
2013 presented by the National Chamber of 
Commerce. 

STC was won the "Gold Award" at the National
Business Excellence Award consecutively in year
2009, 2010 and 2011 conducted by the National
Chamber of Commerce

²	 Green Maco Award 2008 - Sri Lanka Journalist 
Association

²	 Maco Award For Forestry & Environmental 
	 Education - 2010 -Sri Lanka Journalist Association
²	 Award for the most creative exhibition stall - 2009 
	 at "Deyata  Kirula" exhibition
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

EARNINGS HIGHLIGHTS AND RATIOS
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Profit before tax and levy
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Net profit for the year
Return on equity [ROE]
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CORPORATE INFORMATION - 2014

Hon. Susil Premajayantha 		  - Minister of Environment and Renewable Energy
Hon. Al Haj. A R M Abdul Cader 	 - Dy. Minister of Environment and Renewable Energy
Dr. B.M.U.D. Basnayake 		  - Secretary, Ministry of Environment and Renewable Energy

Board of Directors	- 2014
Mr. S. Amarasinghe 		           	   	 - Chairman - State Timber Corporation
Mr. Kosala Hettiaratchi                             	  	 - Working Director – State Timber Corporation
Mr. A. K. A. Y. Tharanga     	  		  - Director (Treasury Representative)
Mr. S. A. A. Sathurusinghe                       	  	 - Director (Conservator General of Forest)
Mr. W. Maurice Wijerathne                      	  	 - Director
Prof. Hiran S. Amarasekara			   - Director
Mrs. Mary Dickmon                        	   	 - Director

Mr .P.G. Kumarasinghe Sirisena
General Manager – State Timber Corporation

AUDIT & MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Mr. A.K.A.Y. Tharanga				    - Chairman 
Mr. A. Sathurusinghe				    - Member
Prof. Hiran S. Amarasekara			   - Member 

AUDITOR
Auditor General
Auditor General’s Department
306/72
Polduwa Road,
Battaramulla.

REGISTERED ADDRESS & HEAD OFFICE 
82, “ Sampathpaya”
Rajamalwatta Road
Battaramulla
Sri Lanka.

PRINCIPAL BANKER
Bank of Ceylon

FINANCIAL CALANDER
January 1st to 31st of December

Telephone	 : #94112866600-5
Facsimile	 : #94112866623
Website		 : www.timco.lk
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TEAM OF MANAGEMENT - 2014

General Manager		  :  P.G. Kumarasinghe Sirisena 
				       Bsc. Mgt (SP), Master of Management (HRM), Master of Business Administration,   	
				        Post Graduate (A&FM), MIOGAF, FMAAT
				        Dip. Business management, APFA (ICA)

DEPUTY GENERAL MANAGERS

D.G.M. - HR & admin		  : K. Siriniwansa			  Bsc., Msc. (Forestry), Dip.(Bus. mgt),Post	
								        Grad. Dip. (Forest survey-Netherland),Dip. 	
							        	 (Forest products research-Japan)

D.G.M. - Operation		  : H.P.S. Navaratna		  Bsc., M.Sc (Forestry), Pg Dip in     
								        forestry for Rural Mgt. (Netherland)

D.G.M. - Marketing		  : G. Senanayake			  BA. (Econ. /Stat.) Spld - Wood 		
								        Industry-CSR –	REMINI in Italy

D.G.M. – IT & MIS		  : D.U. Dayaratna		  Bsc. Msc.(Com. Sc)

D.G.M. – R.T. & D.		  : Dr. N. Ruwanpathirana		 Bsc. Msc. PhD. (Forestry)

D.G.M. – P & T			  : H.M.G.B. Herath		  NDT (Mech.) ,ECGI(UK),MIIESL, 	
								        Post Grad.Dip. (Mech. Wood Tech.	
								        & Prod. Mgt. -Finland)	
	
D.G.M. – Internal Audit		 : W.W.M.J. Coorey		  FCA

D.G.M. – Finance		  : G.D.S. Kumarasinghe		  Bsc. (Acct. Fin. Mgt.), MBA, ACA,	
								        ACMA	

ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGERS

A.G.M – Zone I			  : S.S. Panduwawala		  Bsc.,Msc. (Forestry), Post Grad.		
								        Dip.(Forest survey- Netherland), 	
								        Post Grad. Dip. (Mech.Wood Tech. 	
								        & Prod. Mgt. - Finland)

A.G.M – Mech. Engineering	 :D.S. Samarakoon		  MIE (SL), C. Eng, NDT (Mec) 

A.G.M.  – Production		  : T.S.C. Pushpakumara		  Bsc.Post  Grad.Dip. 
								        (Mech.Wood Tech.  & Prod.Mgt) in 	
								        Finland

A.G.M. – Zone II		  : P.G.R. Samaraweera		  Bsc. Msc. (Forestry)                                 

MANAGERS

Manager – Timber Supply	 : M.C. Devendra		  Bsc., Msc (Forestry)

Manager – Finance		  : D. Wickramasinghe		  Dip. (FA)

Manager – Finance    		  : R.M. Rathnapala		  H.N.D.A., Post Grad. Dip. in
								        Finance (India)-1st Class, Member 
								        A.A.T., Member U.K.A.P.

13
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Manager – Finance			   : H.A.J.M. Peiris			  ICASL (L), Higher Dip.		
									         (Accountancy)

Manager – Legal and Admin		  : A.G.H. Kularathne		  Dip in English, Dip Forestry, 
									         Dip in Mgt., PgD LRHRM, 	
									         ACPM
									       
Manager – Production			   : Dr. M. G. Mohamed Thariq	 Bsc, Msc, Phd.

Manager – Human Resource		  : E.A.D.S.A. Amarasinghe		

Manager – Purch: ship			   : Aruna De Silva

Manager – IT				    : A.G. Maduwage

Manager – R.T.				    : C.K. Muthumala		  Bsc (Agric.)Hons. 		
									         Msc (Forestry)

Manager – Forest Offence		  : W.I Saranga			   Bsc (Hons)

Manager – Investigation			  : E.G. Thilakarathna

Manager – Saw mill 			   : W.B. Samantha			  Bsc. (Gen), Msc.		
									         (Forestry), National Dip in 	
									         Teaching 	
Manager – Reforestation		  :  A.P. Rathnasooriya

Manager – Special Project		  :  A.N.W.A. Ananda

Manager – Furniture Plant		  : M.K.W  Disanayaka		  B.com, Post Grad. 		
									         Dip in International Affairs

  					     J.G. Thisara Gamage		  Bsc.				  
							     

Manager- Timber Grading		  : Y.B.M. Ameer			   Dip in Forestry

REGIONAL MANAGERS

Regional Manager – Polonnaruwa 	 : R. Edirisinghe

Regional Manager – Bandarawela	 : P.K. Ajith Chandana		  Bsc.

Regional Manager – Colombo		  : W. Keerthi Roy

Regional Manager – Anuradapura	 : U.S.M. Fernando		  BA (Sp.)

Regional Manager – Ratnapura		  : H.B. Rajawatta			  BA

Regional Manager – Nuwara Eliya	 : G. Gunawansa			  BA (Sp.), Dip in Forestry

Regional Manager – Monaragala		 : U.P.H. Uluwaduge		  Bsc.

Regional Manager – Kandy		  : E.M.S. Ekanayake

Regional Manager – Jaffna		  : S. Sri Skandaraja

Regional Manager – Kurunegala		 : A.S. Wijesundara

Regional Manager – Matara		  : D.H. Rajapaksha		  Bsc., Msc.

Regional Manager – Ampara		  : M.K.G. Wasantha Raj
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COMPLEX MANAGERS

Manager-Sleepers & Trans.poles 
Kaldemulla	    			     : D.M. Nilmini Pushpakumara 	Bsc.

Regional Manager-Keppetipola		    : A. B. M. Weerasinghe		 BA

DEPUTY MANAGERS

Deputy Chief Internal Auditor		  : H.M.S. Madhawa		  B.com (Sp)		   

Deputy Manager – Timber Gra. & Auc. 	 : T.H. Gunadasa

Deputy Manager – Security		  : Chandima Weeraman	

Deputy Manager- Designing 
& Qua. Assu.				    : E. M. M. Fernando

System Analyst				    : W.H.A. Chandrakumara	 Bsc
					       J.M.M.B Jayasundara

DEPUTY REGIONAL MANAGERS

Deputy Regional Manager – 
Anuradhapura				    : K.P.C Rathnasekara		  BA

Deputy Regional Manager – Colombo	 : H.P.S. Disanayake		  BA

Deputy Regional Manager – 
Bandarawela				    : U.V. Kithsiri                       	  Dip in Forestry              

Deputy Regional Manager – Matara	 : R. Wijethunga		   	 Bsc. (Agri. Sp.) 
					     : L.S. Jayasekara							    
		
Deputy Regional Manager – Ampara	 : M.D. Chamila Sampath

Deputy Regional Manager – 
Nuwara Eliya				    : D.A. Hendavitharana						    
					       M.W.U.J Piyanandana

Deputy Regional Manager – 
Ampara F.F				     : A.C. Jinajudeen

Deputy Regional Manager – Kandy	 : D.G. Siril 
					       R.C.Saman Kumara
	
Deputy Regional Manager – 
Monaragala				    : Duminda Nawarathne

Deputy Regional Manager – 
Kurunegala				    : R.M.S.K Rathnayake
					       Sunil Wijitha Bandara

Deputy Regional Manager – Jaffna	 : T.P. Rameeh

Deputy Regional Manager – Ratnapura	 : H.L.Nandana
					       H.A.Gamini Alwis

Deputy Regional Manager – Matale	 : D.L.Abenayake

Deputy Regional Manager – Kaldemulla	: N.G.Nihal
                                                                          T.S.Rupasinghe

Deputy Regional Manager – Minneriya	 : S.C. Jayamanna

15
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I am pleased to present to you the Annual 
Report and Audited Financial Statements of the 
State Timber Corporation for the Financial Year 
ended 31 December 2014.

The national economy achieved a real GDP 
growth by 7.4 per cent in 2014 in comparison 
with the growth of 7.2 per cent in 2013. Domestic 
economic development activities helped to sustain 
economic growth in the country. The Services 
sector, which represents 57.6 per cent of GDP 
and increased by 6.5 per cent in 2014 compared 
to the growth of 6.4 per cent in 2013 and 32.3 per 
cent of the Industrial sector, performed a sectorial 
growth of 11.4 per cent in 2014 compared to 9.9 
per cent in the previous year. Agriculture sector 
showed only 0.3 per cent growth compared to 4.7 
per cent in the previous year.

Understanding and balancing the economic, 
social, political and biological factors that affect 
forest management is critical and challenging 
and it has a direct influence on the performance 
of the State Timber Corporation. Deforestation 
is a major environmental issue. The increasing 
demand for timber products give rise to increase 
denuding of forests most often illegally. However, 
proper forest management is essential to assure 
an adequate supply of timber in the future. The 
harvesting of trees will only have long-term 
benefits to society if the potential for renewal of 
forests is successfully evaluated, implemented and 
achieved. Sustainable forest harvesting should 
not be related to deforestation. Trees do not live 
forever. At some point, the older, mature trees will 
die and be replaced by younger, faster-growing 
trees. Thus, each stand of trees may be harvested 
to regenerate a young stand or be allowed to 
replace itself naturally after a disturbance.

Under these circumstances the revenue recorded 
for the year under review was Rs.3,474 million 
compared to Rs.2,894 million in 2013. The 
increase was well supported by the newly 
implemented marketing and operational 
strategies. Operating profit was Rs.204 million 

''We have already started commercial 
reforestation program to fulfill future demand 
for timber and timber based products. We 
believe that the reforestation has the potential 
to preserve endangered valuable species. 
Further, we keep our attention on day today 
waste in a sustainable manner by categorizing 
them as paper, polythene and organic waste.''

compared to Rs.124 million in 2013 and registered a profit before tax 
and levy of Rs. 427 million compared to Rs. 382 million of the previous 
year. Profit after tax and special levy for the year was Rs.206 million 
compared to Rs.182 million in 2013. The State Timber Corporation contributed Rs. 1,396 million to 
the national economy in terms of stumpage, operating taxes and special levy. We believe our greatest 
asset is our human resource. During 2014 we continued to invest in our employees in the form of 
training and professional development, ensuring our staff has the necessary skills and competency to 
achieve our targets and serve our customers at the highest possible level. 

State Timber Corporation is relentless in its commitment to uphold the highest standards of 
governance and best practices in every path of its business. Our success at the National Business 
Excellence Awards 2014 “Deva Jawaye Nayakathwaya” provided strength to STC to win the “Silver 
Award” is testimony to this commitment. We invested responsibly, sustainably, with creativity and 
innovation, have laid the foundation for future growth. We also built on our strong track record as a 
responsible corporate citizen by continuing “Thurujana Sisu Bank” tree planting program for identified 
schools by giving material and monetary aids, conducted lecture and distributed valuable plants 
such as Ebony among schools to increase the interest of the young generation on tree planting and 
contributed to National Tree Planting Program by providing 88,000 seedlings. We have already started 
commercial reforestation program to fulfill future demand for timber and timber based products. 
We believe that the reforestation has the potential to preserve endangered valuable species. Further, 
we keep our attention on day today waste in a sustainable manner by categorizing them as paper, 
polythene and organic waste. We actively participated in “Dayata Kirula- Kuliyapitiya” to upgrade the 
unfavorable social opinion on timber industry.

I wish to express my sincere gratitude to the Hon. Minister of Environment and Renewable Energy, 
Deputy Minister of Environment and Renewable Energy, Secretary and the staff of the Ministry of 
Environment and Renewable Energy, and Conservator General of Forests and the staff attached to the 
Forest Department and all other government officials for extending their co-operation on behalf of 
the Board.  Special thanks are also due to General Manager and all the staff members on behalf of the 
board for their contribution, their knowledge, skill and above all their unstinted loyalty and dedication 
on our voyage to success.

We do not expect 2015 to be any easier but we remain focused as always on the long term and short 
term challenges and will continue to deliver to the very best of our ability. We remain committed to 
continuing to deliver a good return to our stakeholders through the achievement of our targets.

Chairman’s Message

b,lal yd imqrd.ekSï ms<sn| iudf,dapkh 
iy wëlaIKh  

iNdm;s;=udf.a m%Odk;ajfhka yd ish¨u m%dfoaYSh 

l<ukdlrejka yd ixia:dfõ fcHIaG l<ukdlrejkaf.a 

iyNd.S;ajfhka udislj l<ukdlrK /iaùï mj;ajkq 

,nk w;r" tysoS i;H ld¾hidOkh" ksIamdokh iy 

wf,ú b,lal iuÕ ii|d n,kq ,efí'  fuu /iaùï j,oS 

ish¨u ndOl yd .egˆ wod, m%dfoaYSh l<ukdlrejka 

iuÕ idlÉPd lr y|qkd.kq ,nk w;r" ta iïnkaO 

úúO ;SrK yd úl,am ls%hdud¾. fhdackd lr miqj tu 

fhdackd we.hSug ,lalr ls%hd;aul lrkq ,efí'  ;jo 

ixia:dfõ wruqKq yd b,lal <Õdlr .ekSfï wNs,dIfhka 

yd wfmaÌs; uqo,a m%jdyh ,Õdlrf.k uQ,Huh w;ska 

Yla;su;a wdh;khla njg ;yjqre lsÍfï wruqKska kj 

2012-2013 j¾Ij, ksIamdokh" wf,úh yd wdodhu

ksIamdok m%udKh wf,ú m%udKh msßjegqu

2013 2012 2013 2012
2013 2012
re' ñ,shk re' ñ,shk

l|ka              >'ó 106,122 132,859 96,560 118,679 1,770.8  1,867.4 

brE oej            >'ó 4,117 4,955 2,487 3,323 166.9  201.4 

is,amr            tall 73,526 117,306 64,938 111,019 443.8  729.0 

 úÿ,s lKq           tall 31,887 30,469 29,413 37,094 208.6  255.5 

 jeg lKq           tall 131,774 203,511 145,051 192,224 87.7  62.9 

 or                >'ó 85,156 104,316 86,922 110,412 8.9 8.5 

 lïì lKq         tall 88,685 79,608 83,927 86,728 2.7 5.0 

wjia:djka" kj woyia yd l<hq;= fjkialï iïnkaOfhka 

o idlÉPd lrkq ,efí'

wOHÌ uKav,h fjkqfjka w;aika lf<a'

tia'wurisxy

iNdm;s 

rdcH oej ixia:dj'
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S. Amarasinghe
Chairman,
State Timber Corporation
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I am pleased to present you the Annual Report and the Audited 
Financial Statements of State Timber Corporation for the financial 
year ended 31st December 2014.
The State Timber Corporation is the absolute leader providing most 

trusted and best quality timber and timber based products in the country. State Timber Corporation 
has an island wide operational network extending to 12 regional offices, 54 sales centers and over 200 
forest working coupes to harvest timber from the forest plantations and 03 furniture manufacturing 
factories including impregnation and seasoning plants and 6 showrooms.
End of year 2014, Sri Lanka reached a healthy GDP growth of 7.4 percent and it was a significant year 
for State Timber Corporation. The Government of Sri Lanka step up efforts to develop economic and 
social infrastructure across the country, which will be resulted to achieve sustained economic growth 
in the longer term. From a business perspective we took place several changes to operations of the 
State Timber Corporation to tap in to the current opportunities in the global market as to increase 
turnover of the STC.

Our success in 2014 was due in large part to the focused execution of strategic priorities which 
involved driving sustainable and profitable business through growth by geographic expansion, strategic 
partnerships, product differentiation and modern technology. We believe that the responsible timber 
harvesting supports the economic dimension of sustainable forest management, along with healthy 
forests and a viable forest products manufacturing sector. Sustainable forest management, as a dynamic 
and evolving concept, aims to maintain and enhance the economic, social and environmental value of 
all types of forests, for the benefit of present and future generations. 

We were able to close this year with a net profit before tax and levy of Rs. 427 million whereas for the 
previous year we recorded a profit of Rs. 382 million showing a 12% increase. The sales figure went up 
from Rs. 2,894 million to Rs. 3,474 million, an increase of 20%. Profit after tax and special levy was 
Rs.206 million while contributing Rs. 1,396 million to the national Economy.

We are very proud to record some significant achievements during the financial year under review 
that demonstrate our high standard of manufacturing. We were awarded by the “Business Excellence 
Silver Award” of the Manufacturing State Sector at the National Business Excellence Awards- 2014, 
which was conducted by the National Chamber of Commerce of Sri Lanka (NCCSL) with a view to 
recognizing business enterprises, which have demonstrated excellence in business, whilst contributing 
to the economic progress of the country.

We identify and value the necessity of being environmentally caring and responsible, not just 
to survive, but as an investment for our future generations 88,000 seedlings were produced by 
Corporation managed nursery to distribute for the national tree planting program of “ Dayata Sewana” 
and to mark the “World Environmental Day” continued “Thurujana Sisu Bank” tree planting program 
with identified schools to increase the interest of the young generation on tree planting. Our product 

GENERAL
MANAGER'S REVIEW

quality is still considered by 
customers as the best, and our 
aim is to be consistently so. On a 
positive note, general motivation 
of the workforce is high and we 
are focusing on product quality 
and efficiency, with a view to 
bring State Timber Corporation 
to its highest level. 

I must express my appreciation 
to the Minister and Deputy 
Minister of the Environment and 
Renewable Energy, Secretary 
to the Ministry, Chairman 
and the Board of Directors for 
their continued confidence and 
support in the effort to nurture 
the interests of the Corporation 
and all its stakeholders. My 
sincere gratitude is also hereby 
expressed to our valued 
customers, whose loyalty to 
us as their long-term supplier 
of Timber and Timber based 
products has been unwavering 
throughout, making them the 
very foundation of our success. 
We will continue to do our 
utmost to offer you the best and look forward to further strengthening the bonds of our partnership 
towards mutual progress. I am deeply honored by the steadfast support extended to me by all my 
colleagues - in the management team, and the staff of 2,186 committed people, whose passion, drive 
and dedication on an everyday basis, keep us on firm ground and propel us on the road to success.

''We are very proud to record some significant achievements 
during the financial year under review that demonstrate 
our high standard of manufacturing. We were awarded 
by the “Business Excellence Silver Award” of the 
Manufacturing State Sector at the National Business 
Excellence Awards- 2014, which was conducted by the 
National Chamber of Commerce of Sri Lanka (NCCSL) 
with a view to recognizing business enterprises, which have 
demonstrated excellence in business, whilst contributing to 
the economic progress of the country.''

P.G. Kumarasinghe Sirisena
General Manager
State Timber Corporation

tjlg mej;s iudcShSh" foaYmd,ksl" mdßißl iy wd¾Ól 

wjdisodhl ;;ajhka oeäj n,md we;s nj igyka l< hq;=h' 

wmf.a by< ksIamdok m%ñ;Ska ;jÿrg;a ;yjqre lrñka 2013 

uQ,H j¾Ih ;=<oS" wm ,Õdlr.;a iqúfYaIS ch.%yK ms<sn|j 

iksgqyka lrkqfha w;sYh wdvïnrfhks'  rfÜ wd¾Ól oshqKqjg 

odhl;ajh imhñka" úYsIaG whqßka jHdmdr lghq;= fufyhjk 

jHdmdßl wdh;k y÷kd.ekSu msKsi YS% ,xld cd;sl jdKscH 

uKav,h u.ska mj;ajk ,o 2013 cd;sl jHdmdr úYsIaG;d 

iïudk W<f,aoS" rdcH ksIamdok wxYhg ysñ úYsIaG;aj l=i,;d 

iïudkfhka msÿï ,eîh'  ;jÿrg;a wmf.a r|dmeje;au 

Wfoidu fkdj" wmf.a bosß mrmqr fjkqfjka mßirh ms<sn| 

ie,ls,su;aùfï yd j.lSfï wjYH;djh y÷kd.ksñka “oehg 

fijK” cd;sl rela frdamK jevigyk hgf;a ixia:dj i;= 

;jdkaj, idok ,o me, j¾. 88"000la fnod fok ,oS'  tfuka 

u ;reK m%cdj w;r rela frdamKh ms<sn| we,au jeälsÍfï 

wruqKska f,dal mßir oskhg iu.dój “;=reck isiq nexl=” 

rela frdamK jevigyk M,odhS f,i wLKavj fï jif¾oS;a 

ls%hd;aul lrk ,oS'  

wmf.a NdKavj, .=K;ajh ms<sn| ;ju;a mdßfNda.slhka w;r 

f.dvkeÕS we;s ls¾;skduh wLKavj mj;ajdf.k hEu wmf.a 

wruqKhs'  fiajlhkaf.a wNsfm%arKh by< uÜgul mj;sk neúka 

wmf.a wNsu;d¾;h jkafka ;jÿrg;a ksIamdokhkaf.a .=Kd;aul 

nj yd M,odhs;djh ms<sn| uy;a fia ie,ls,a,g f.k tu.ska 

rdcH oej ixia:dj tys ysks fm;a;g f.k tauhghs'

wjidk jYfhka ixia:dfõ Wkak;sh msKsi wLKavj lemù lghq;= 

lrk mßir yd mqk¾ckkSh n,Yla;s wud;H;=ud" ksfhdacH 

wud;H;=ud" wud;HxY f,alï;=ud" iNdm;s;=ud" yd ls%hdldß 

wOHCI;=ud m%uqL wOHCI uKav,fha ld¾hNdrh ud b;d w.h 

fldg i,lk w;r" oej yd oej wdYs%; ksIamdok iemhqïlre 

f,i wLKavj wm fj; oeä mCImd;S;ajhla olajñka" wmf.a 

id¾:l;ajhg w;a;sjdru imhkakd jQ mdßfNda.sl ys;j;=kag 

o" udf.a lD;{;djh msßkuk w;r" wmf.a ne|Su ;jÿrg;a 

Yla;su;a lr.kq jia yels Wmßu YlH;djfhka Tn yg 

wk¾>;u ksIamdok iemhSug o wms ieoS meyeoS isáuq'

id¾:l;ajfha udj; Tiafia fõ.j;a yd ;sr .ukla hEu 

msKsi wp, iyfhda.hla olajk udf.a l<ukdlrK uvq,af,a 

ish¨u iyDohkag iy ieuod ,eoshdfjka" oeä mßY%uhlska 

yd lemùulska ls%hdlrkq ,nk 2"139 lg wêl wmf.a ld¾hh 

uKav,hg udf.a w;sYh f.!rjh msßkuk w;r" kka whqßka 

iyfhda.h ,en ÿka ish¨ fokdg;a udf.a yDohdx.u m%Kduh 

mqolr isáñ'

rdcH oej ixia:dfjys jd¾Isl 

jd¾;dj bosßm;a lsÍug 

,eîu ms<sn| ud b;du;a 

i;=gg m;a jk w;r" fuu 

j¾Ih rdcH oej ixia:dj 

45 jeks ixj;airh iksgqyka 

lrk nj mjik a fk a o 

w;sYh ika;Dma;sfhks'  iEu 

wNsfhda.hlg u id¾:lj 

uqyqKoSug;a" f.!rjdkaú; 

lS¾;skduhla ia:dms; lsÍug;a yels úh'  fj<|fmdf,ys wjqreÿ 

45l m<mqreoao iu. b;du;a wk¾> ;;ajfha oejuh NdKav 

idOdrK ñ,g imhk w;r" ks;H mdßfNda.slhka fukau kj  

mdßfNda.slhka o wmf.a fiajh ms<sn| w;sYhska ;Dma;su;a 

h'

oej iy oej wdYs%; NdKav iemhSfuys mqfrda.dñfhl= 

jYfhka ksIamdok l¾udka;h Tijd ;eîu i|yd rdcH 

oej ixia:dj b;d jeo.;a l¾;jHhla wLKavj bgqlrkq 

,nhs'  wmf.a oelaug wkqj cd;sfha úYajikSh;ajh oskQ 

wk¾>;u oej yd oejuh NdKav iemhqïlreùu iy oej 

fj<|fmdf<ys ienE kdhl;ajh bis,Su fjkqfjka fufyhqï 

ls%hdj,sfha jeäoshqKqj i|yd m%uqL;ajh ,nd fokafkuq' rdcH 

oej ixia:dj osjhsk mqrd me;sÍ .sh m%dfoaYSh ld¾hd, 12la 

iuÕ foaYfha m%uqLhd f,i os.ska os.g u Yla;su;aj ke.S 

isà'  kj ;dlaIKh ksIamdokhg Wmfhda.S lr .ksñka 

ñksiqkaf.a cSú; kÕdisgqùu Wfoid rdcH oej ixia:dj 

wkqmfïh fufyhla bgqlrhs'  

j.lSfuka hq; = oej wiajkq fk<Su ;sridr jk 

l<ukdlrKhlg fya;= jk nj wmf.a úYajdihhs'  ;sridr 

jk l<ukdlrKh fõ.j;a iy l%ufhka úldYkh jk 

ixl,amhla jYfhka" j¾;udk iy wkd.; mrmqfrys 

wNsjDêh i|yd jk iïmf;ys wd¾Ól" iudcSh iy mdßißl 

jákdlï wdrlaId lsÍug;a Wiia lsÍug;a lghq;= lrhs'  

rdcH oej ixia:dj remsh,a ñ,shk 3"270 l miq.sh 

j¾Ifhys msßjegqug idfmaCIj remsh,a ñ,shk 2"894 l 

msßjegqula fuu jif¾ Wmhd we;'  fuu miqnEug m%Odku 

fya;=j jYfhka is,amr" oej l|ka" brE oej iy úÿ,s lKq 

úl=Kqï wdodhfuys wvqùu fmkajd osh yel'  flfia kuq;a 

rdcH oej ixia:dj remsh,a ñ,shk 382l nÿ fmr Y=oaO 

,dNhla fmr jif¾ remsh,a ñ,shk 802 la jQ nÿ fmr 

Y=oaO ,dNhg idfmaCIj Wmhd we;s w;r" cd;sl wd¾Ólhg 

remsh,a ñ,shk 1"277l odhl;ajhla iemhSfuka miq Y=oaO 

,dNh remsh,a ñ,shk 182la o f,i jd¾;d.; fldg we;'  

Bg wkqrEmsj j;alï u; m%;s,dN wkqmd;h 8] la f,io" 

ialkaOh u; m%;s,dN wkqmd;h 11] la o jd¾;d lsÍug 

ixia:dj iu;a ù ;sfí' flfia jqj;a" iudf,daÑ; uQ,H j¾Ih 

;=< ixia:dj úiska ÿ¾j, ld¾hidOkhla fmkakqï lsÍug 

 idudkHdêldß;=udf.a iudf,dapkh

"wm úiska wdvïnr úh yels f.!rjdkaú; lS¾;s kduhla ia:dms; lr we;'  

fj<|fmdf,ys wjqreÿ 45l m,mqreoao iu. b;du;a wk¾> ;;ajfha oejuh NdKav 

idOdrK ñ,g imhk w;r ks;H mdßfNda.slhka fukau kj mdßfNda.slhka o wmf.a 

fiajh ms<sn| w;sYhska ;Dma;su;ah'"

mS'Ô' l=udrisxy isßfiak

idudkHdêldÍ

rdcH oej ixia:dj
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OUR FUNCTIONS

Extraction of timber from forests, conversion of such timber into sawn timber and 
finished products, sale of logs, sawn timber and finished products, construction of 
forest roads required for the above purpose.

Acquisition, construction and operation of logging units, saw mills, impregnation 
and preservation plants, seasoning and drying kilns and other equipment and 
installations.

Operation of timber and firewood sales depots.

Manufacturing and marketing of by-products of timber. 

Import of timber.

Afforestation, reforestation and scientific management of forests and forest 
plantations.

Agricultural productions.

Export of timber related finished and semi-finished products.

Purchase of timber from private lands.

Processing of forest related products.

Import of Cane.

Identification and certification of local and imported timber species through sample 
testing.

Conduct training programmes related to timber industry on related subjects and 
issue of certificates to successful candidates and under take environmental awareness 
programmes to contribution towards transformation in to environmental conscious 
society.

Strategic planning and investing resources so as to optimize the output from the lands 
and buildings owned by the Corporation.

OUR BUSINESS VALUES

²	 We recognize that our primary responsibility is to maintain our status as a 
strictly environmentally friendly and a commercially viable public sector 
institution;

²	 We are committed to complying with all statutory regulations related to 
scientific management of forests and extraction of timber to ensure a clean 
and healthy environment;

²	 We recognize that the primary reason for our existence is to create ethical-
business relationships with our customers, whilst creating value for them and 
for all Sri Lankans;

²	 We will develop our employees to achieve highest productivity levels, through 
skill improvement, professional development and continuous education and 
training;

²	 We will place our customers at the centre of everything we do to provide an 
efficient and courteous service to them;

²	 We will assure highest standards of personal integrity at all levels of our 
operations and provision of services;

²	 We will adhere by spirit and letter of all statutory regulations and social norms 
with regard to the environment and forest resources to protect and promote 
them as the precious national heritage of our future generations.

OUR ORGANIZATION

VISION 

MISSION 

The State Timber Corporation, established in 1968, is
a state owned business organization coming under
the purview of the Ministry of Environment. The
Timber Corporation is a successful business entity in
Sri Lanka managed by the Chairman and the Board of
Directors appointed by the Minister of Environment
& Renewable Energy.

To be the nation’s leader in providing most
trusted and best quality timber and timber
based products

To produce timber based products for our
customers though the knowledge, skills gained
over the time and contribute to the national
and environmental demands of Sri Lanka
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS - 2014

Mr. S. Amarasinghe 
	   - Chairman - State Timber Corporation

		  Mr. Kosala Hettiaratchi                               
- Working Director – State Timber Corporation

Mr. A. K. A. Y. Tharanga      
- Director (Treasury Representative)

		  Mr. S. A. A. Sathurusinghe                          
- Director (Conservator General of Forest)

Mr. W. Maurice Wijerathne                      
	  -   Director

Prof. Hiran S. Amarasekara
 -   Director

		  Mrs. Mary Dickmon                         
-   Director
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First Line

P.G. Kumarasinghe Sirisena
General Manager

Second Line (Left to Right)

M.V. Karunaratne
Dy. General Manager (Operation)

K.Siriniwansa
Dy. General Manager (HR & Admin)

D.U. Dayaratne
Dy. General Manager (IT & MIS)

Third Line (Left to Right)

G. Senanayake
Dy. General Manager (Marketing)

W.W.M.J. Coorey
Dy. General Manager (Internal Audit)

Fourth Line (Left to Right)

H.M.G.B. Herath
Dy. General Manager (Production & Technical)

Dr. N. Ruwanpathirana
Dy. General Manager (R.T. & D)

G.D.S. Kumarasinghe
Dy. General Manager (Finance)
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM - 2014
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REVIEW FOR 
THE YEAR - 2014

The Board of Directors of  State Timber Corparation has the pleasure in presenting the Annual Report 
together with the Audited Financial statements of the Corparation for the year 2014.

The turnover of the Corporation during the year increased to Rs. 3,474 Million, compared to Rs. 2,894 
Million in the previous year.  The total turnover increased by 20% compared with the previous year. 
Gross Profit for the year was Rs. 1,453 Million compared to 1,198 Million in the previous year, and 
it was increase of 21%. However though the turnover increased, some policies of the government, 
economic conditions and political factors directly influenced for the increment of costs and 
performance of the Corporation.

Net profit before tax and levy for the year under review has been increased up to Rs. 427 million by 
Rs. 45 Million when compared with the previous year net profit before tax and levy of Rs. 382 Million. 
Administration, Selling and distribution expenses for the year increased by 15% from Rs 1,135 Million 
to Rs 1,308 million .Selling and distribution expenses have been increased by 14% compared to last year. 
Administration Expenses of the corporation increased by 16% from Rs 652 Million to Rs 757 Million.

  Performance

Turnover
Gross Profit
Other Operating Income
Profit on Operation
Non - Operating Income
Levy Imposed by Treasury
Net Profit before Tax and Levy

2014 

3"474

1"453

60

204

223

25

427

2013 

2"894

1"198

61

124

258

50

382

Rs. Mn Rs. Mn

Turnover (Rs.Million) Gross Profit (Rs.Million)

2,894 

3,473 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

2013 2014

Turnover 

3,474

1,198 
1,453 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2013 2014

Gross Profit 

2013 2014

1,198
1,453

2,000

1,500

1,000

500

0

In 2014 after deducting all the administration expenses and selling and distribution expenses, Net 
profit after tax and levy is Rs.206 Million. It has been increased by Rs 24 Million in compare with 
previous year.

Return on assets and return on equity for 2014 was 8% and 12% respectively. 

The Corporation’s contribution to the Government Revenue for the period under review was Rs. 1,396 
Million compared to Rs. 1,276 million in the previous year. 

	

2014
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ROA

8]

8]
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12]

11]
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Species

Teak
Eucalyptus
Pinus
Kaya
Akashiya

Thinning (ha.)
2014

382'3

98'0

-

-

6'5

2013

-

352'2

-

-

-

Clear Felling (ha.)
2014

538'0

20'0

136'3

-

9'0

2013

600'0

26'0

124'6

-

27'0

Production

Extraction of Timber from State Forests

The Forest Department has released forest plantation according to forest management plan to extract 
timber such as Teak, Pinus, Eucalyptus etc. The forest management areas released for extraction of 
trees in the year 2013 & 2014 are as follows.

Conversion of Logs into Sawn Timber

During the year 2014 – 4239 M3 Sawn Timber has been produced by the saw mills and 2,567 M3 has 
been sold out by the STC depots throughout the Island as against the 4,117 M3 productions in the year 
2013.

Treatment of Transmission Poles and Sleepers

During the year under review 39,389 sleepers, 41,332 transmission poles and 38,630 elephant 
poles treated in the STC treatment plants. Treatment of transmission poles and elephant poles has 
significantly increased during the year in relation to the prior year.

Manufacturing of Furniture

STC furniture plants at Ampara, Boossa and Kaldemulla have produced Rs.260.4 Million worth 
furniture during the year 2014. Furniture worth Rs. 238.3 million has been sold during the year by 
the STC show rooms at Ratmalana, Kandy, Rathnapura, Thalalla, Ampara and Boossa. Production of 
furniture has increased by 23% during the year in comparison to the previous year.

House hold furniture

Office furniture

Traditional furniture

Finger joint furniture

Interior design projects

FURNITURE RANGE

House hold furniture

Office furniture

Traditional furniture

Finger joint furniture

Interior design projects

FURNITURE RANGE
FURNITURE PRODUCTION IN BOOSA FACTORY

Use ancient (17 BC) design with modern

technology of the carpenters, State Timber

Corporation is manufacturing innovative type of

production.

This is manufacturing under house hold category

and highlighting our heritage and culture

Products are high quality, natural, durability,

reliability, ancient attractive style and design

branded product.

FURNITURE PRODUCTION IN BOOSA FACTORY

Use ancient (17 BC) design with modern

technology of the carpenters, State Timber

Corporation is manufacturing innovative type of

production.

This is manufacturing under house hold category

and highlighting our heritage and culture

Products are high quality, natural, durability,

reliability, ancient attractive style and design

branded product.House hold furniture

Office furniture

Traditional furniture

Finger joint furniture

Interior design projects

FURNITURE RANGE
STC Furniture Plants at Ampare, Boossa and 
Kaldemulla have Produced Rs. 260.4Million worth 
Furniture during the year 2014. Furniture worth 
Rs.238.3 Million has been Sold during the year by the  
STC Showrooms at Retmalana, Kandy, Rathnapura, 
Thalalla, Ampara and Boossa.

Logs                     M3
Sawn Timber      M3
Sleepers              No.
Trans. Poles        No.
Elephant Poles   No. 
Round Poles      No.
Fire Wood          M3
Fence Post         No. 

2014

131"162

4"239

39"389

41"332

38"630

126"333

105"537

110"254

2013

106"122

4"117

73"526

31"887

26"475

105"299

85"156

88"685

2014

118"231

2"567

64"761

32"567

36"088

126"130

102"301

116"635

2013

96"560

2"487

64"938

29"413

37"827

107"224

86"922

83"927

2014

2"336'8

185'4

568'7

314'0

104'5

12'8

47'0

9'8

2013

1"958'0

182'2

527'3

222'2

100'2

10'7

39'3

7'6

Production Sales Volume GrossTurnover Rs.(Mn)

Production Sales and Revenue 2013 - 2014
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Our Reach

We cover all part of the country reaching the entire national population via a well-designed operational 
structure with 12 regional offices, 54 sales depots throughout the Island, 03 furniture manufacturing 
factories at Kaldemulla, Ampara & Boossa, 06 showrooms at Kandy, Ratnapura, Thalalla, Ampara, 
Kaldemulla and Boossa, 03 timber treatment plants at Keppetipola, Kaldemulla & Boossa, 6- saw mills 
at Ampara, Kandy, Boossa, Kaldemulla, Rathmalana, Thalalla, 4 - saw mills at Bandarawela, 2 - saw 
mills at Rathnapura, 4 - saw mills at Keppetipola, 2 - saw mills at Kurunegala.
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REVIEW AND MONITORING OF TARGETS AND ACHIEVEMENTS

The management had monthly regional meetings chaired by the Chairman and attended by all 
Regional Managers and Senior Managers of the Corporation. Monthly production targets and sales 
targets are monitored with the actual performance at these monthly meetings. All the bottlenecks 
and problems identified by the respective Regional Managers are discussed and sorted out, further 
various decisions and alternatives are proposed which are later evaluated and implemented. In 
addition, opportunities and new ideas and changes are discussed and appropriate directives are given 
in achieving the targets and objectives of the Corporation and to realize the required cash flow with a 
view to running the Corporation as a financially viable organization.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors.

S.Amarasinghe.
Chairman,
STATE TIMBER CORPORATION.

b,lal yd imqrd.ekSï ms<sn| iudf,dapkh 
iy wëlaIKh  

iNdm;s;=udf.a m%Odk;ajfhka yd ish¨u m%dfoaYSh 

l<ukdlrejka yd ixia:dfõ fcHIaG l<ukdlrejkaf.a 

iyNd.S;ajfhka udislj l<ukdlrK /iaùï mj;ajkq 

,nk w;r" tysoS i;H ld¾hidOkh" ksIamdokh iy 

wf,ú b,lal iuÕ ii|d n,kq ,efí'  fuu /iaùï j,oS 

ish¨u ndOl yd .egˆ wod, m%dfoaYSh l<ukdlrejka 

iuÕ idlÉPd lr y|qkd.kq ,nk w;r" ta iïnkaO 

úúO ;SrK yd úl,am ls%hdud¾. fhdackd lr miqj tu 

fhdackd we.hSug ,lalr ls%hd;aul lrkq ,efí'  ;jo 

ixia:dfõ wruqKq yd b,lal <Õdlr .ekSfï wNs,dIfhka 

yd wfmaÌs; uqo,a m%jdyh ,Õdlrf.k uQ,Huh w;ska 

Yla;su;a wdh;khla njg ;yjqre lsÍfï wruqKska kj 

2012-2013 j¾Ij, ksIamdokh" wf,úh yd wdodhu

ksIamdok m%udKh wf,ú m%udKh msßjegqu

2013 2012 2013 2012
2013 2012
re' ñ,shk re' ñ,shk

l|ka              >'ó 106,122 132,859 96,560 118,679 1,770.8  1,867.4 

brE oej            >'ó 4,117 4,955 2,487 3,323 166.9  201.4 

is,amr            tall 73,526 117,306 64,938 111,019 443.8  729.0 

 úÿ,s lKq           tall 31,887 30,469 29,413 37,094 208.6  255.5 

 jeg lKq           tall 131,774 203,511 145,051 192,224 87.7  62.9 

 or                >'ó 85,156 104,316 86,922 110,412 8.9 8.5 

 lïì lKq         tall 88,685 79,608 83,927 86,728 2.7 5.0 

wjia:djka" kj woyia yd l<hq;= fjkialï iïnkaOfhka 

o idlÉPd lrkq ,efí'

wOHÌ uKav,h fjkqfjka w;aika lf<a'

tia'wurisxy

iNdm;s 

rdcH oej ixia:dj'
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We Cover all Part of the Country 
reaching the entire national 

population via a well - designed 
operational structure
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aduit and management 
committee report - 2014

Members of the Audit and Management Committee - 2014 
Committee
		  Mr. A.K.A.Y. Tharanga	 -	 Chairman 

		  Mr. A. Sathurusinghe		  - 	 Member

		  Prof. Hiran S. Amarasekara	 -	 Member 

During the year under review AMC meetings were held once in three months. Following 
recommendations were made to the Board of Directors for their approval.

		  1.	 Monthly financial and physical performance

		  2.	 Annual accounts

		  3.	 Annual budget and revised budget

		  4.	 Internal audit and Auditor General’s audit queries and 			 

			   replies

		  5.	 Personnel and administration matters

		  6.	 Legal matters

		  7.	 Other matters such as staff loans, advances and awarded 			 

			   tenders etc. 

(Sgd)

A.K.A.Y. Tharanga
Chairman - AMC

FiNANCIAL AND PRODUCTION  
PERFORMANCE

A summary on financial progress made by maintaining financial stability during the previous eight 
years. Summary on financial performance during previous eight years, consist of cash flows, assets and 
liabilities, capital expenditure, and profits earned. Progressive indexes on profit gained and expenditure 
incurred by the Corporation according to investment plans and action plans will testify to high 
standards of financial management. Whilst achieving financial progress during the past , Corporation 
too have worked for the achievement of financial objectives and maintenance of financial stability and 
sustainability which facilitate the years to come.

Income Growth Trend Analysis
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Profit Growth Trend Analysis
Gross Profit (Rs.'000) Net Profit Before Levy / Tax (Rs.'000)
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Operational Profit (Rs. '000)

 1
10

,0
18

  

 1
20

,5
76

  

 9
4,

42
9 

 

 9
1,

41
6 

 

 1
37

,3
17

  

 1
38

,6
32

  

 1
32

,8
59

  

 1
06

,1
22

  

 1
31

,1
62

  

 -

 20,000

 40,000

 60,000

 80,000

 100,000

 120,000

 140,000

 160,000

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Production Growth Trend Analysis

Production of Logs (M3) Production of Sawn Timber (M3)
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 2014

INVESTMENTS

	 DESCRIPTION	  Rs.  

	

Boralanda labour quarters - Dewa Niwahana   	  10,156,750 

Boiler machine - VBC 02 ton	  9,347,233 

Hino crain lorry  - 05 nos	  40,565,964 

Thalawa new building	  5,200,620 

Boiler building	  3,071,820 

Addition to impregnation plant	  2,776,696 

Oddusudhan depot office	  2,498,823 

Holytek (taiwan) yrt-115 "rectangular tenoner"	  2,410,268 

Desktop computers - lenovo 25 nos	  2,300,000 

Sawmill building	  2,212,649 

Investments

Government Ins. Temporary Surplus Trust Fund 	

Ratuity fund People's Bank 					  

Land Reclamation and Development Board 		

Bank of Ceylon 						    

State Mortgage and Investment Bank 			 

Lanka Timber Plantation Ltd 				  

Total 							     

	

31-12-2013

Rs

338,010,495

811,508,552

500,000

509,082,847

81,474,846

30,000,000

1,770,576,739
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Contribution to the 
National Economy

STC explores new opportunities and encourages effective 
resource utilization of capital and skill, brings new products, 

services, methods and develops markets for growth of the 
economy.
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Contribution to the National 
Economy

State Timber Corporation operates in timber industry as a business leader who looks for ideas and 
places them into effect in fostering economic growth and development. State Timber Corporation 
plays a vital role not only in the development of timber industrial sector of a country but also in the 
development of other sectors. In 2014, the State Timber Corporation contributed Rs 1,396 million to 
the national economy as stumpage, VAT and NBT, income tax and special levy. Five years summary is 
as follows,

Stumpage
BTT/VAT/NBT
Income Tax
Special Levy

Total

2010

758"318"131

520"464"311

253"586"600

413"490"090

1"945"859"132

2011

777"852"620

433"254"605

242"640"682

75"000"000

1"528"747"907

2012

831"555"555

447"825"030

192"453"384

600"000"000

2"071"833"969

2013

706"779"429

387"928"678

131"882"763

50"000"000

1"276"590"870

2014

743"675"772

424"740"460

202"347"603

25"000"000

1"395"763"835

The major roles play by the STC in the economic development of an economy is 
specified in below.

1. 	 STC provides direct and indirect employment opportunities to many more. STC plays an vital role 
in reducing the problem of unemployment in the country which helps economic development of 
the nation.

2. 	 STC promotes regional development and removes regional discrepancies by setting up regional 
offices in less developed and backward areas. The establishment of business in these areas provides 
large number of public benefits.  

3. 	 STC explores new opportunities and encourages effective resource utilization of capital and skill, 
brings new products, services, methods and develops markets for growth of the economy.

4. 	 Increase in the standard of living of the people is a core feature of economic development of the 
country. STC enables the people to supply better quality goods at a reasonable price and adopting 
latest innovations to the production to provide wide range of product and services for the benefit of 
the society as well as environment.

5. 	 STC carries out exports to earn foreign exchange in order to combat the import dues requirement 
to ensure economic independence and development.

6. 	 STC involves by reducing the growth of monopoly in the timber market by involving the overall 
process and controlling timber industry to some extent for the benefit of public at national level.

Increase in the standard of living of the 
people is  a core feature of economic 

development of the  country. STC enables 
the people to supply better quality goods 
at a reasonable price and abopting latest 

innovations to the production to provide 
wide range of product and services for the 

benefit of the society as well as environment.

7. 	 It stimulates equitable redistribution of wealth and income to more people and geographic areas.

8. 	 STC as a social responsible person who operates various programs to protect environment and 
promote sound environmental practices to the society. 
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corporate 
governance

Corporate Governance is most often viewed as both structure and the 
relationship which determine corporate direction and performance. The 

board of directors is typically central to corporate governance.
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Corporate governance

Corporate Governance is most often viewed as both structure and the relationship which determine 
corporate direction and performance. The board of directors is typically central to corporate 
governance.

	 The Board of Directors, senior management and all employees of State Timber Corporation 	
	 are required to embrace and, through their behavior, augment this culture in the performance 	
	 of their official duties, and in other situations, to uphold the State Timber Corporation’s image 	
	 and reputation.

The Board of Directors

²	 The basic role of the Board of Directors is to manage or to supervise the management of the 	
	 corporation. 
²	 Directors and officers are “Fiduciaries” of the corporation. Fiduciary is a legal term that 		
	 means that they owe the utmost loyalty and good faith to the corporation, and must act only in 	
	 its best interests. 
²	 Directors and officers must comply with their duties under every applicable law. 

There are seven members of the board consisting of the Chairman, Working Director, Forest 
Conservation General, Treasury Representative and Lawyers. The Board meetings are conduct 
monthly to take all major decisions. The Directors are responsible for protecting the rights and interest 
of stakeholders and are accountable to them for the overall management of the Corporation.

Statutory Obligations

1. 	 The Board approved budget should be forwarded to line ministry, Treasury and auditor 		
	 general before the commencement of the year.

2. 	 The draft of the annual report and accounts should be rendered to the auditor general within 	
	 60 days after the close of the financial year.

3.	 The final audited accounts together with the auditor’s report in all three languages should be 	
	 tabled in Parliament within 150 days after the close of financial year.

4. 	 Corporate plan approved by the Board should be forwarded to line Ministry, Treasury and 	
	 Auditor General.

Audit Committee

Committee comprised members of both Non-Executive Board members chaired perfectly by a 
treasury representative or person possessing financial management skill. This committee meet on 
regularly at least once in three months for the purpose of reviewing financial statements, performance 
of the Corporation, Annual audit plan, Internal and external audit reports etc.

Management Meetings

Senior managers of State Timber Corporation are 
attended to the management meetings. In this meeting 
Production, marketing and sales performances are 
reviewed and evaluated. And also major problem and 
constraints are discussed and solutions and decisions 
are taken at these management meetings.

Regional Performance Management 
Meetings

This meeting is specially held for coup officers in 
charge of forest coups, depot officers in charge of 
sales and other regional staff. This meeting is for 
evaluate the performance of the regions and set targets 
on production. Various kinds of weaknesses and 
opportunities can be identified and decisions taken 
with regard to the problem areas by holding these 
meetings.

Technical Evaluation Committee

This committee is appointed according to the 
government procurement guidelines to evaluate tender 
and make recommendations.STC publishes its Annual 
Report every year within stipulated times. The report 
is prepared for the benefit of the stakeholders and 
the public in accordance with Guidelines for Good 
Governance, which has been prepared to improve the 
Financial Management Systems of the Corporation. 
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Relationship with Stakeholders

The Board identifies the importance of maintaining a healthy relationship with its key stakeholders. 
Internal communication is mainly conducted through the, emails, memoranda and circulars and 
notices. The Board also ensures that the Corporation’s policies and practices are in line with the 
Corporation’s values and social responsibility. The Corporation promotes protection of environment of 
inside and outside the Corporation.

Compliance with Statutory and Regulatory Requirements

The State Timber Corporation enjoys the unique position in the country as the leader providing most 
trusted and best quality timber and timber based products to the nation for the past 46 years. The State 
Timber Corporation was incorporated in 1968 by Hon. Minister of Land, Irrigation and Power under 
the provision of State Industrial Corporation Act No.49 of 1957 and further amended and updated by 
the Gazette Extraordinary No 178/10 of 5.2 of 1982 and Gazette Extraordinary No. 11907 of 26.6 2009.

The State Timber Corporation can be pleased over its contribution to the national economy. The 
biggest challenge was when the Government with aim of protecting and conserving the natural 
resources promulgated several rules unauthorized felling of trees in specified areas and this had 
adverse impact on the business activities of the Corporation.

As a responsible corporate citizen, STC in compliances with Acts and Ordinance along with their 
subsequent amendments successfully conducts its operations.

•	 Forest Ordinance Act No. 13 of 1966
•	 Finance Act No. 38 of 1971
•	 The Shop and Office Employees Act No. 15 of 1954
•	 Employee’s Trust Fund Act No. 46 of 1980  
•	 Employee’s Provident Fund established under the Act No. 15 of 1958
•	 Inland Revenue Act No. 10 of 2006
•	 Value Added Tax Act No. 14 of 2002
•	 Nation Building Tax Act No. 09 of 2009

Apart from the State Acts & Ordinance Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRS & LKAS) & Sri Lanka 
Auditing Standards (SLAUS) also applicable for accounting & auditing functions in STC.
The Parliamentary Committee on Public Enterprises (COPE) is empowered to review the annual 

Trustworthiness

Credibility

Reliability

Transparency

Accountability

Quality

Sustainability

VALUES WE ARE TRYING TO  
PERCEIVE

accounts and performance, to ascertain the extent to which the corporation achieve performance 
targets and fulfill social responsibilities.

The most prominent raw material of our corporation is trees, which is one of the most important 
natural resources and also the entire operational processes are directly as well as indirectly connecting 
with the environment. Under such scenario, it is compulsory to comply with the legal framework. Our 
corporation has already complied with the rules and regulations imposed by the Central Environment 
Authority (CEA)

Our island wide operational network consists with factories like saw mills, impregnation pressure 
plant and boiler & kilning house and furniture production plant. Along with the final output of all 
these factories, it generates side effects which affects to the environment. Corporation is practicing 
a controlling system in order to minimize the bad effects of the operational activities. For that CEA 
has imposed scheme of conditions under different areas to maintain our operational activities in 
environmental friendly manner.

Accordingly corporation follows environmental controlling system in the areas of noise pollution, 
water pollution, air pollution, solid wastage maintenance and other environmental related conditions.

Service units of STC which consists with factories have been issued Environmental Conservation 
license by CEA annually. Accordingly each and every factories of the corporation keen to comply with 
those conditions as much as possible.

In order to minimize the frequency of corruption occurrence, corporation is conducting relevant 
disciplinary actions against the particular parties. Accordingly, employees are subjected to penalize 
such as interdictions, discounting per day salary, annual increment and promotion, suspending the 
salary, charging particular loss. These punishments depend on the nature of the corruption has been 
done by the employees.

If an employee is suffering from any harassment or discrimination, then employee has the opportunity 
to inform those things to their superior. Superior and top management of the corporation are actively 
involving to make necessary actions related to particular situation.
These types of actions will benefit for the employees and stakeholders as well as whole country.

Finally, corporate governance boosts corporation’s reputation in compliance with local, state and 
federal rules and regulations and decreases the conflicts and frauds from bad behavior of employees 
and employers.
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SustainABLE Future
Sustainable development is the development 

which meets the needs of the present without 
compromising the ability of future generations 

needs.
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Regular business 
activities

The concept of sustainable development can be explained as many ways. Sustainable development is 
the development which meets the needs of the present without compromising the ability of future 
generations needs. Sustainable business organization that participates in environmental friendly or 
green activities to ensure that all processes, products, and manufacturing activities adequately address 
current environmental concerns while maintaining a profit. It is the process of assessing how to design 
products that will take advantage of the current environmental situation and how well products 
perform with renewable resources. Sustainability secures people's quality of life within the means of 
nature in a way that is fair and equitable to all humanity, other species and to future generations. 

SustainABLE Future

Customers

Purpose of satisfying customers, based on the policy of “Customer First" we develop and provide 
innovative, safe and outstanding high quality products and services that meet a wide variety of 
customers' demands to enrich the lives of people around the country.

Customer satisfaction can be defined as the degree of satisfaction provided by the goods or services of 
a company as measured by the number of repeat customers. Large share of our customer base consists 
of government institutions such as Sri Lanka Army, Sri Lanka Railways, and Ceylon Electricity Board 
etc. STC has identified that the customer satisfaction based on following elements and works together 
to achieve corporate goals.

	 1. Customer focus
	 2. Innovation
	 3. Integrity
	 4. Respect
	 5. Continuous improvement
	 6. Quality

As government institution State Timber Corporation has taken steps to change environment of the entire 
organization to create a culture that truly puts customer first associates with great customer service.

Key Elements to 
Achieve Customer

Satisfaction

Customer
Focus Integrity Quality Continuous

Improvement

Respect Innovation
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Employees
Purpose of satisfying employees, based on the 
policy of “Happy employees" State Timber 
Corporation we respect our employees and believe 
that the success of the corporation depends on the 
performance of the employees. Employees’ faithful 
connection with the Corporation plays an integral 
role in achieving corporate goals and objectives. 
Motivated employees which will result in having 
people who have a strong vested interest in keeping 
customers satisfied. Employees that are loyal and 
heavily invested in an organization will naturally 
desire to do things that keep and increase a loyal 
customer base. 

STC has recognized that it is necessary not so much 
based on technical skills but on attitudes, team 
work abilities and a natural inclination towards 
friendliness and service to others. Because if the 
employee has the right attitude, pickup skills faster 
and adapt quickly.

STC has made its culture to look after its own. 
While the Corporation believes in working hard, 
they also believe it is important to celebrate just 
as hard. STC provides many of fringe benefits 
other than salary and wages to its employees such 
as medical insurance, meal and tea allowance, 
shoe allowance, bus fare, staff loan facilities and 
employee welfare facilities etc. 

STC certainly believes that recruiting the right 
employees based on attitude, teaching them the 
skills necessary for the job and creating the type of 
environment that they never want to leave and it 
will accomplish the success of the organization.  

STC has recognized that it is  necessary not so much based 
on technical skills but on attitudes, team work abilities and 
anatural inclination to words friendliness and service to of 

hevs. Because if the employee has the right attitued, pick up 
skills faster and adapt quickly. 
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Environment and 
Community
State Timber Corporation aims for growth that is 
in harmony with the environment by seeking to 
minimize the environmental impact of our business 
operations, such as by working to reduce the effect 
of operations and transportation on climate change 
and biodiversity. 

We implement our own values by honoring the 
culture, customs, history and laws of the country. 
We always establish for safer, cleaner and superior 
technologies that satisfy the evolving needs of 
society for sustainable development. Wherever we 
do business, we actively promote and engage in 
social contribution activities that help strengthen 
communities and contribute to the enrichment of 
society.

We always establish for safer, cleaner and superior 
technologies that satisfy the evolving needs of society for 

sustainable development.
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CSR Activities

Corporate social responsibility can be explained as behaving responsibly. State Timber Corporation 
we, often try to perform as responsible citizen. Ethical business needs to actively promote the interests 
of its employees, customers, community, and other related parties.  

Activities carried out during 2014 to build a better society.

1. To celebrate “World Environmental Day” several programs were conducted.

²	 “Thurujana Sisu Bank” – tree planting program was continued successfully. Identified schools 	
	 were given materials and monetary aids to buildup interest of the young generation on tree 	
	 planting and it will tend to give a clear idea of timber species and its development and the 		
	 significance of correct utilization of timber trees after they reached to maturity.
²	 Conducted lectures on environment, forest conservation and bio diversity for school children 	
	 and parents.
²	 Donation of informative books posters and leaflets.
²	 Distribution of valuable plants such as Ebony trees for schools and home gardens.
²	 Conducted exhibition stall in Hindu cultural centre organized by Minneriya bio Diversity 		
	 Park.

2. Active contribution to “Dayata Sewana” tree planting program. 

²	 Planted 5,000 teak plants in 25 Acres of State Timber Corporation premises , Medawachchiya 	
	 to Continue Dayata Sewana Tree Planting Program”.
²	 3,000 plants were planted in Bandarawela district .
²	 Provided 88,000 seedlings for distribution.

3.  Garbage disposal management

We STC tend to manage day today waste in a sustainable manner by categorizing them as paper, 
polythene and organic waste.

CSR Activities

62

CSR Activities

4. Management Diary – 2014

As a responsible corporate citizen, we designed management diary 2014 under the theme of “The 
art of Sri Lanykan traditional masks” was printed aiming to educate the public on the heritage and 
importance of conservation them. 

5. Establishment of exhibition stall in “Dayata Kirula” Kuliyapitiya. 

The stall was occupied with many interesting components which had not only entertainment value but 
also educational value to its viewer. Models of many activities done by STC from timber harvesting to 
final production was illustrated at the occasion. This created more awareness in general public about 
the timber industry. STC purpose is to change the unfavourable social opinion on timber industry and 
work out a radiant future to the industry with sustainable forest management.

6. Provided many training and research opportunities to undergraduates all over the country.

7. Delivered lectures to university students regarding timber industry and timber supply.

8. Timber identification and Certification service.

State Timber Corpoaration has been granted the authority to issue timber certificates on timber quality 
and timber properties by special gazette no. 1538/7 on 25th February 2008. Facilities are available in 
the STC to determine the specific gravity, moisture content, shrinkage and treatability test for Boron 
treatment.

9. Services provided by the TTTI unit 

STC took a land mark step to setup training institute, Timber Technology Training Institute at 
Kaldemulla in 2006. The main purpose is to strengthen the work of all who engage practicing forestry 
and timber technology through capacity building and updating of knowledge in Sri Lanka to achieve 
their goals in the context to national development.	

Corporate social responsibility can be explained as behaving responsibly. State 
Timber Corporation we, often try to perform as responsible citizen. Ethical 
business needs to actively promote the interests of its employees, customers, 
community, and other related parties. 
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Report of the
auditor general

Report of the Auditor General on the financial 
statements of the state timber corporation for the 
year ended 31 December 2014 in terms of section 

14(2) (c) of the Finance Act. 38 of 1971 
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ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
For the year ended 31st December
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Note

2

3

6

6.2

6.1

4

5

7

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME	 			 
				  
				  

For the year ended 31st December	 2014	 2013

		  Rs.	 Rs. 

				  

Turnover	 3,473,847,448 	 2,893,748,677 

Cost of sales	 (2,020,396,537)	 (1,696,133,479)

Gross profit on operation	 1,453,450,911 	 1,197,615,198 

Other income				 

                                                Operating	 59,808,848 	 61,498,711 

                                                Non-operating	 222,826,051 	 258,397,070 

Total net income	 1,736,085,810 	 1,517,510,979 

Selling and distribution expenses	 (551,768,665)	 (483,373,537)

Administration expenses	 (757,094,704)	 (651,800,681)

Profit before levy	 427,222,441 	 382,336,761 

Levy paid to treasury	 (25,000,000)	 (50,000,000)

Profit after levy	 402,222,441 	 332,336,761 

Taxation for the year  	 (196,224,578)	 (150,222,702)

Profit after taxation	 205,997,863 	 182,114,059 

Other comprehensive income	  -   	 -   

Total comprehensive income for the year	 205,997,863 	 182,114,059 

8
9

10

11.1

7.2

12
13

11.2
14

15

16

17

18
19

Note

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION				 

As at 31st December				 
		  2014	 2013
		  Rs.	 Rs. 
				  
ASSETS				 
Non-current assets				 
Property plant and equipment	 905,640,314 	 906,902,528 
Intangibles	 1,634,835 	 2,237,142 
Biological assets	 4,836,929 	 3,184,890 
Deposits with treasury	 2,966,000 	 2,966,000 
Security deposits - staff	 48,717,776 	 44,231,056 
Investments	 491,211,954 	 567,085,340 
Prepaid staff benefit	 43,149,305 	 46,927,158 
Deferred tax asset	 41,757,543 	 33,396,804 
Capital work in progress	 114,993,567 	 51,603,590 
Total non-current assets	 1,654,908,222 	 1,658,534,509 
Current assets				 
Inventories	 1,068,260,904 	 988,883,042 
Trade and other receivables	 1,050,972,162 	 890,708,037 
Investments in fixed deposits	 1,574,321,125 	 1,203,491,399 
Cash and cash equivalents	 311,305,958 	 70,694,647 
Total current assets	 4,004,860,149 	 3,153,777,126 
TOTAL ASSETS	 5,659,768,371 	 4,812,311,635 
			 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES				 
Capital and reserves				 
Authorized	 75,000,000 	 75,000,000 
Contributed capital	 41,503,668 	 41,503,668 
Revenue reserves	 3,311,070,807 	 3,110,175,859 
		  3,352,574,475 	 3,151,679,527 
Staff loan revolving fund	 230,554,340 	 225,543,133 
Total equity	 3,583,128,815 	 3,377,222,660 
Non current liabilities				 
Retirement benefit obligation	 435,931,143 	 340,599,947 
Security deposits - staff	 48,717,776 	 44,231,056 
Total non-current liabilities	 484,648,919 	 384,831,003 
Current liabilities				 
Income tax liabilities	 232,193,834 	 88,581,787 
Trade and other payables	 1,359,796,803 	 961,676,185 
Total current liabilities	 1,591,990,637 	 1,050,257,972 
Total liabilities	 2,076,639,556 	 1,435,088,975 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES	 5,659,768,371	 4,812,311,635
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This statement of the activities of the State Timber Corporation is submitted in terms of the 
Finance Act No. 38 of 1971.						    
						    

General Manager						    
State Timber Corporation						    
						    
The accounting policies on pages 85 to 91 and Notes on pages 92 to 101 form and integral part 
of these Financial Statements. The board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and 
presentation of these Financial Statements. These Financial Statements were approved by the 
Board of Directors and signed on their behalf,						    
				    		
 

Chairman								        Director		
State Timber Corporation						    
On behalf of the Board of Directors						    
						    
Date: 20th July 2015						    
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT				  
				  
For the year ended 31st December	 2014	 2013
		  Rs.	 Rs.

Cash flows from operating activities				 

Cash receipts from customers	 3,114,095,334 	 3,100,220,273 

Cash paid to suppliers and employees	 (2,679,852,677)	 (2,692,082,754)

Cash generated from operating activities	 434,242,657 	 408,137,519 

Income tax paid	 (60,973,270)	 (13,827,187)

Special levy paid to the treasury	 (25,000,000)	 (50,000,000)

Net cash inflow/(outflow)  from operating activities 	 348,269,387 	 344,310,332 

				  

Cash flows from investing activities				 

Purchase and construction of property, plant & equipment	 (113,479,867)	 (329,685,077)

Development of Biological assets	 (1,652,039)	 (3,184,890)

Investments	 (294,956,339)	 (385,399,827)

Income from investments	 353,965,156 	 247,383,991 

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment	 6,843,786 	 9,112,038 

Work in progress	 (63,389,977)	 52,917,833 

Staff loan revolving fund	 5,011,207 	 9,707,359 

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities	 (107,658,075)	 (399,148,574)

				  

Cash flows from financing activities	  - 	 - 

				  

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	 240,611,311 	 (54,838,242)

				  

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (Note-14)	 70,694,647 	 125,532,889 

				  

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  (Note-14)	 311,305,958 	 70,694,647 

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st December 2014

01. Accounting Policies

1.1 Reporting Entity

1.1.1 	 Legal Form

	 State Timber Corporation is a Corporation which was incorporated in April 1968, under the 	
	 State Industrial Corporation Act No. 49 of 1957.

1.1.2 	 Date of Authorization for Issue

	 The Financial Statements of the Corporation for the year ended 31st December 2014 were 
authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 20th July 
2015.

1.1.3 	 Number of Employees

	 The employees’ strength of the Corporation as at 31st December 2014 is 2,186. (2013-2,139).

1.1.4 	 Responsibility for Financial Statements  

	 The Board of Directors is responsible for preparation and presentation of these financial 
statements.

1.2 Basis of Preparation

1.2.1 	 Statement of Compliance

	 The Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Comprehensive Income, Changes in 
Equity and Statement of Cash Flow, together with the notes, (the “Financial Statements”) of 
the Corporation as at 31st December 2014 and for the period then ended have been prepared 
in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (LKAS & SLFRS) and statements of 
recommended practices promulgated by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri 
Lanka (ICASL).

1.2.2 	 Basis of Measurement

	 The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the staff 
loan receivables are measured at fair value.

1.2.3 	 Functional and Presentation Currency

	 The Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees, which is the Corporation’s 
functional currency. All financial information presented in Sri Lankan Rupees has been 
given to the nearest Rupee, unless stated otherwise.
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1.2.4 	 Use of Estimates and Judgments

	 The presentation of Financial Statements requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and underlying 
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed 
to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in 
any future period affected.

1.2.5 	 Foreign Currency Transactions

	 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency at exchange rates 
on the date of the transactions.

1.2.6 	 Taxation

	 The provision for income tax is based on the elements of income and expenditure as 
reported in the Financial Statements and computed in accordance with the provision of the 
Inland Revenue Act No.10 of 2006 and subsequent amendments.

1.3 Significant Accounting Policies

	 The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented 
in these financial statements.

1.3.1 	 Assets and Basis of the Valuation

1.3.1.1 	 Property, Plant and Equipment

1.3.1.1.1 	 Basis of Recognition

	 Property, plant and equipment are recognised if it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the asset will flow to the corporation and the cost of the asset can be reliably 
measured. Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the asset and any other costs directly attributable to 
bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, and the cost of dismantling 
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located and capitalized 
borrowing cost. When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different 
useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant 
and equipment. 

1.3.1.1.2 	 Gains and Losses on Disposal

	 Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined 
by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and 
equipment, and are recognized net within “other income/other expenses” in Statement of 
Comprehensive Income.

1.3.1.1.3	  Subsequent Costs 

	 The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the 

carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied 
within the part will flow to the Corporation, and its cost can be measured reliably. The 
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. The costs of the day-to-day servicing 
of property, plant and equipment are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

1.3.1.1.4 	 De-Recognition

	 The carrying amount of an item of Property, Plant & Equipment is derecognized on disposal 
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss 
arising from derecognition of an item of Property, Plant & Equipment is included in profit 
or loss when the item is derecognized. 

1.3.1.1.5 	 Depreciation

	 Depreciation is recognized in profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated 
useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment. Freehold land is not 
depreciated. Applicable rates are as follows.

			   Buildings Permanent 					     2.5% 
			   Buildings Semi-Permanent 				    30.0%
			   Plant and Machinery					     10.0%
			   Vehicles 						      20.0%
			   Roadways and Railways					     5.0%
			   Leasehold Lands 					     5.0%
			   Road Construction					     10.0%
			   Furniture and Fittings 					     15.0%
			   Office Equipment 					     15.0%
			   Miscellaneous Assets 					     20.0%
			   Computers 						      20.0%

1.3.1.2 	 Capital Work in Progress

	 Capital expenses incurred during the year which are not completed as at the statement of 
financial position  date are shown as capital work-in-progress, while the capital assets which 
have been completed during the year and put to use are transferred to property, plant and 
equipment.

1.3.1.3 	 Intangible Assets 

	 An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is 
probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to 
the Corporation. Intangible assets wholly consist of cost of computer software.  Intangible 
assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at cost. Intangible assets are carried at 
cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Subsequent 
expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits. Amortisation 
is recognised in Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of five years.

1.3.1.4 	 Biological Assets

	 Biological assets are classified as mature biological assets and immature biological assets. 
Mature biological assets are those that have attained harvestable specifications or are able 
to sustain regular harvests. Immature biological assets are those that have not yet attained 
harvestable specification. 
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	 Biological assets are further classified as bearer biological assets and consumable biological 
assets. Bearer biological asset are not intended to be sold or harvested, however used to 
grow for harvesting agriculture produce. Consumable biological assets includes managed 
timber trees those that are to be harvested as agricultural produce from biological assets or 
sold as biological assets. The entity recognize the biological assets when, and only when, the 
entity controls the assets as a result of past event, it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the assets will flow to the entity and the fair value or cost of the assets can be 
measured reliably.

	 Life span of Teak Tree to maturity is expected to be 35 years from the date of planting. It is 
assumed that one teak tree takes 10 year period from the date of planting for its biological 
transformation. The cost is treated as approximation to fair value of immature plants as the 
impact on biological transformation of such plants to price during this period is immaterial. 
The managed timber trees are measured on initial recognition and at the end of each 
reporting period at its fair value less cost to sell in terms of LKAS 41. 

1.3.1.5 	 Investments

1.3.1.5.1. 	Investment in Fixed Deposits stated at cost.

1.3.1.5.2 	 Long Term Investments Stated at Cost

1.3.1.5.3 	 Investment at State Mortgage and Investment Bank

	 This investment has been made with the State Mortgage and Investment Bank for granting 
housing loan facilities to the employees of the State Timber Corporation.

1.3.1.5.4 	 Impairment 

	 A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting 
date to determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset 
is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial 
recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future 
cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

1.3.1.5.5 	 Investment at Lanka Timber Plantation Industries Ltd
	
	 No dividend ever been received from this investment and also the possibility of recovery of 

this investment amounting to Rs.30,000,000/- is doubtful. Therefore the impairment loss of 
investment is Rs. 30,000,000/-.

1.3.1.6 	 Current Assets

	 Assets classified as current assets on the Statement of Financial Position are cash and bank 
balances and those which are expected to be realized in cash during the normal operating 
cycle or within one year from the Statements of Financial Position date, whichever is shorter.

1.3.1.7 	 Debtors and Receivables

	 Trade debtors and other receivables are stated at the amount that they are expected to 
realize. Bad debts are written off and provisions for doubtful debts are made against those 
debtors to cover expected losses as follows.

	 Specific provision – 100% in respect of debtors of which age is over 5 years
	 General provision – 5% in respect of the balance debtors as at 31.12.2014.

	 Staff debtors with a repayment period of more than one year stated at fair value. It is the 
present value of future cash flows expected to be received from such staff debtors calculated 
based on commercial bank prime lending rates published in the Central Bank at the date of 
loan granted.

1.3.1.8 	 Inventories

	 Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Donated timber 
inventory also measured at the lower of cost (to bring inventories into present location and 
condition) or net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and selling expenses. 
Cost is determined on the first in first out basis and includes all costs incurred in bringing 
inventories to the present location and condition. Production cost includes all direct cost 
and production overhead cost at normal level of activity. When it is necessary 15% general 
provision has been provided for obsolete, slow moving and defective items.

1.3.2 	 Liabilities and Provisions

	 Liabilities classified as current liabilities on the Statements of Financial Position are those 
which fall due for payment on demand or within one year from the Statement of Financial 
Position date. Non-current liabilities are those balances that fall due for payment later than 
one year from the Statement of Financial Position date. All known liabilities have been 
accounted for in preparing the Financial Statements.

1.3.2.1 	 Trade and Other Payables

	 Trade and other payables are stated at their cost.

1.3.2.2 	 Retirement Benefit Obligation

	 Employees who have completed five years of continued service with the Corporation are 
eligible for retirement benefit in accordance with the payment of Gratuities Act No.12 of 
1983. However provision has been made in the accounts for the retirement benefit for all 
employees of the corporation taking into consideration their last drown salary and the years 
of services as at 31st December 2014. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually 
using the Formula method. The Corporation has invested in fixed deposit account, in 
People’s Bank in order to meet future liabilities.

1.3.2.3 	 Provisions, Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities

	 Provisions are recognised, if as a result of a past event, the Corporation has a present legal 
or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably and it is probable that an outflow of 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. 

	 Provision has been made for all quantifiable liabilities and others have been declared. 
	 Corporation has a dispute with a trade supplier regarding import of creosote from previous 

year. LC margin amounting to US $ 54,490.51 is not released and withheld at the bank due 
to this dispute.
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	 The Conservator General of Forest has informed us the government had sustained a loss due 
to unauthorized felling in the Bagawanthalawa Chapalton commercial thinning plot of land. 
After the investigation this was not established due to doubtful facts.Conservator general of 
forest has decided to investigate this issue together with STC Officers.

	 The Government had sustained a loss due to discrepancies occurred in removing timber 
from submerging areas of Rambakenoya reservoir. “B” report has been presented by 
Forest department to the Dehiaththakandiya court .Corporation has explained the 
reasons regarding the issue to Attorney General’s Department and still Attorney General’s 
Department has not filed a case.

1.3.3 	 Statement of Comprehensive Income 

	 For the purpose of presentation of the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the function 
of expenses method is adopted, as it represents fairly the elements of Corporation 
performance. Income and expenditure are recognized on accrued basis.

1.3.3.1 	 Revenue Recognition

	 Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received 
or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. The 
timber has been issued to the employees of the State Timber Corporation and the Forest 
Department, under the scheme of 25% concessionary rate. This is included in the account of 
welfare facilities.

1.3.3.2	 Expenditure Recognition

	 All expenditure incurred in the running of the business has been charged to income 
in arriving at the profit for the year. Repairs and renewals are charged to Statement of 
Comprehensive Income in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

1.3.3.2.1 	 Income Tax

	 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are 
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in 
equity or in other comprehensive income.

	 Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for 
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any 
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

	 Current applicable income tax rate is 28% and deemed dividend tax rate is 25%.

	 Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, providing for temporary differences 
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and 
the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based 
on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and 
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the Statements of Financial 
Position date.

	 A Deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable 
profits will be available against which the future asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are 
reduced to the extent that is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

1.3.3.2.2 	 Stumpage Payment

	 The stumpage payment for the year 2014 has been calculated on actual felled timber volume 
basis.

1.3.3.2.3 	 Cost Allocation

	 Cost of conversion of Saw Mills and Timber Cost is allocated on the basis of Timber 
Transfer Value and Mechanical Workshop cost is allocated on the basis of Hiring Charge to 
relevant units.

1.3.4 	 Events Occurring After the Reporting Date

	 All material post reporting events have been considered and where appropriate, adjustments 
or disclosure have been made in respective notes to the Financial Statements.

1.3.5	  Staff Loan Revolving Fund

	 This fund is created to grant the loans to employees of the Corporation. The amount of 
interest received from staff loans stated as other income in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income. Interest income received after tax is transferred to Staff Loan Revolving Fund to 
buildup fund. Employee loans disbursements limit to the available fund balance in the Staff 
Loan Revolving Fund. 

1.3.6 	 Statement of Cash Flows 

	 The Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared using the direct method in accordance with 
the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (LKAS) 07, Statement of Cash Flows. Cash and cash 
equivalents comprise short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. The cash 
and cash equivalents include cash in-hand, balances with banks and short term deposits 
with banks.
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Notes to the Financial Statements						    

02.Turnover	 2014	 2013
		  Rs.	 Rs.

Logs - crown lands	 1,774,835,926 	 1,543,389,558 
Logs - private lands	 41,521,752 	 22,276,964 
Sawn timber	 156,140,096 	 170,298,367 
Sleepers - private lands	 324,619,571 	 218,085,380 
Sleepers - crown lands	 155,478,174 	 234,746,032 
Sleepers - export	 48,297,160 	 -   
Transmission poles - crown lands	 142,153,826 	 208,271,838 
Transmission poles - private lands	 195,127,486 	 4,511,925 
Elephant poles	 88,672,100 	 86,554,236 
Others	 24,737,684 	 24,707,962 
Forest offence timber	  37,669,004 	 39,668,133 
State land donated timber	 315,497,163 	 201,425,749 
Furniture	 238,318,417 	 198,529,090 
Gross turnover	 3,543,068,359 	 2,952,465,235 
Less:Nation building tax	 (69,220,911)	 (58,716,558)
Net turnover	 3,473,847,448 	 2,893,748,677 

03. Cost of Sales	 2014	 2013
		  Rs.	 Rs.

Depots and wayside depots	 906,772,371 	 723,341,531 
Impregnation plants	 661,198,073 	 604,406,762 
Furniture plants	 165,251,217 	 146,648,802 
Wayside sales	 287,174,876 	 221,736,385 
Total	 2,020,396,537 	 1,696,133,479 

04. Selling and Distribution Expenses	 2014	 2013
		  Rs.	 Rs.

Depots	 505,088,613 	 447,078,988 
Impregnation plants	 7,209,147 	 9,821,782 
Furniture plants	 27,587,476 	 17,327,761 
Regional manager office and head office	 11,883,430 	 9,145,006 
Total	 551,768,665 	 483,373,537 

05. Administration Expenses	 2014	 2013
		  Rs.	 Rs.

Impregnation plants	 38,127,030 	 22,184,888 
Furniture plants	 29,144,333 	 24,573,880 
Regional manager office and head office	 683,100,131 	 597,934,435 
Circuit bungalows	 6,723,210 	 7,107,478 
Total	 757,094,704 	 651,800,681 

06. Other Income	 2014	 2013
		  Rs.	 Rs.
6.1 Non-operating income 				 
	
Interest income - investments	 197,513,358 	 226,670,712 
Foreign exchange gains	 1,136 	 4,723 
House rent	 15,042,601 	 14,991,686 
Gratuity over provision	  - 	 6,198,327 
Staff loan interest	 10,268,957 	 10,531,622 
		  222,826,051 	 258,397,070 

6.2 Operating income				 
		
Miscellaneous income	 20,952,428 	 38,025,841 
Fines-contractors and suppliers	 568,079 	 543,947 
Disposal Income	 6,474,636 	 -   
Over provision of stock	 27,245,757 	 10,046,557 
Debtors over provision	 2,003,952 	 9,894,147 
Recovery on shortages and losses	 1,153,737 	 1,000,453 
Non refundable tender deposits	 1,410,260 	 1,987,765 
		  59,808,848 	 61,498,711 

Total	 282,634,899 	 319,895,781 
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07. Taxation Expenses	 2014	 2013
		  Rs.	 Rs.

Current tax expenses				 
Income tax on profit for the year	 202,347,540 	 131,882,763 
Over/under provision of previous year	 2,237,777 	 - 
		  204,585,317 	 131,882,763 
Deferred tax expense				 
Origination and reversal of temporary differences	 (8,360,739)	 18,339,939 
		  (8,360,739)	 18,339,939 
Tax charge for the year	 196,224,578 	 150,222,702 

7.1 Income tax on profit for the year	 2014	 2013
		  Rs.	 Rs.

Profit before taxation	 402,222,441 	 332,336,761 
Aggregate disallowable expenses	 293,664,679 	 103,786,686 
Aggregate allowable expenses	 (423,720,740)	 (445,416,408)
Profit from business	 272,166,380 	 (9,292,961)
Non business income	 212,557,094 	 241,667,122 
Taxable income	 484,723,474 	 232,374,161 
Income tax at 28%	 135,722,573 	 65,064,764 
Deemed dividend tax	 66,624,967 	 66,817,999 
Total	 202,347,540 	 131,882,763 

7.2 Deferred tax	 Temporary	 Tax effect 
		  difference	 (asset)/ liability		
		  Rs.	 Rs.

Balance as at 01st January 2013	 (119,274,300)	 (33,396,805)
Amount origination during the year	 (29,859,781)	 (8,360,739)
Balance as at 31st December 2014	 (149,134,081)	 41,757,543 
					  
Temporary difference of property plant and equipment	 286,797,062 	 80,303,177 
Temporary difference of retirement benefit obligations	 435,931,143 	 122,060,720 
Carried forward tax losses	 - 	 - 
Balance as at 31st December 2014	 149,134,081 	 41,757,543 
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4 11. Investments

11.1 Investments - Long term	 2014	 2013
As at 31st December 	 Rs.	 Rs.

Investments in fixed deposits				 
People's bank	 -   	 117,100,000 
Government ins.temporary surplus trust fund	 360,226,630 	 338,010,495 
State mortgage and investment bank	 130,485,324 	 81,474,846 
		  490,711,954 	 536,585,340 
Investments in shares				 
Land reclamation and development (pvt) ltd	 500,000 	 500,000 
Lanka timber plantation ltd.	 30,000,000 	 30,000,000 
(-) Impairment of investment	 (30,000,000)		
		  500,000 	 30,500,000 
Total	 491,211,954 	 567,085,340 

11.2 Investments - Short term	 2014	 2013
As at 31st December 	 Rs.	 Rs.

Investments in fixed deposits				 
People's bank	 696,410,412 	 694,408,552 
Bank of ceylon	 877,910,713 	 509,082,847 
Total	 1,574,321,125 	 1,203,491,399 
					  
12. Inventories			 
	
As at 31st December	 2014	 2013
		  Rs.	 Rs.

Stock-in-trade 	 919,995,872 	 899,863,184 
Stock deteriorations	 (116,548,545)	 (118,981,084)
		  803,447,327 	 780,882,100 
Goods in transit	 76,743,448 	 45,141,546 
Work in progress	 36,902,197 	 21,137,014 
Stores and spares	 104,376,621 	 107,385,216 
Preservatives	 27,987,940 	 20,049,766 
Fuel and oil	 2,590,469 	 2,903,761 
Stationary stock	 16,212,901 	 11,383,639 
Total	 1,068,260,904 	 988,883,042 
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12.1 Analysis of inventories				 
As at 31st December	 2014	 2013
		  Rs.	 Rs.

Crown land logs	 477,644,908 	 513,390,101 
Crown land sawn timber	 196,148,449 	 166,901,181 
Private land logs	 669,081 	 1,962,491 
Crown land sleepers	 103,896 	 67,246,138 
Private land sleepers	 1,377,702 	 22,816,418 
Crown land transmission poles	 49,274,718 	 11,341,942 
Private land transmission poles	 38,529,211 	 -   
Others	 13,242,339 	 9,548,955 
Furniture	 143,005,568 	 106,655,959 
Total	 919,995,872 	 899,863,184 

13. Trade and Other Receivables				 
		
As at 31st December	 2014	 2013
		  Rs.	 Rs.

Trade debtors	 760,981,262 	 475,392,716 
Provision for doubtful debts	 (49,869,309)	 (35,589,882)
		  711,111,953 	 439,802,834 
Staff debtors  	 162,274,544 	 158,191,032 
Other debtors 	 17,898,395 	 19,995,516 
Deposits and prepayments				 
Advances local purchases	 38,659,265 	 16,332,025 
Advances pre -payment	 29,189,005 	 24,903,941 
Advances timber supplies	 13,001,712 	 7,533,576 
Interest receivable -deposits	 57,683,002 	 206,023,255 
Returned cheques	 110,552 	 29,928 
Kataragama astapala funds	 1,000,000 	 1,037,000 
Deposit courts	 8,752,033 	 8,752,032 
Ministry of environment	 3,817,263 	 6,886,714 
Forest department	 6,910,741 	 322,398 
Value added tax recoverable	 -   	 293,689 
Ports authority	 563,698 	 604,095 
Total	 1,050,972,162 	 890,708,037 

13.1 Other debtors				 
As at 31st December	 2014	 2013
		  Rs.	 Rs.

Miscellaneous debtors	 3,828,645 	 4,861,555 
Deposits- general	 14,433,370 	 15,480,581 
Provision	 (366,620)	 (366,620)
Deposit tender	 3,000 	 20,000 
Total	 17,898,395 	 19,995,516 

13.2 Staff debtors				 
As at 31st December	 2014	 2013
		  Rs.	 Rs.
Staff loans				 
Vehicle loan	 3,899,083 	 4,681,265 
Distress loan	 112,815,515 	 122,716,321 
Electrical equipment loan	 50,067 	 156,973 
Bicycle loan	 1,527,351 	 1,672,180 
Laptop loan	 35,085,981 	 21,626,814 
Furniture loan	 1,945,513 	 2,440,004 
		  155,323,510 	 153,293,558 
Advances and other loans				 
Salaries and wages advance 	 7,900 	 9,500 
Travelling advance	 45,687 	 70,945 
Festival advance	 4,239,279 	 2,183,467 
Internal debit notes	 1,767,994 	 2,296,463 
Staff recoveries	 790,174 	 215,879 
Salusala textile loan	 100,000 	 121,220 
		  6,951,034 	 4,897,474 
Total	  162,274,544 	 158,191,032 

14. Cash and Cash Equivalents				 
		
As at 31st December	 2014	 2013
		  Rs.	 Rs.

Cash in hand	 959,167 	 1,104,893 
Cash in transit	 7,914 	 15,027,593 
Bank  of  ceylon	 119,169,001 	 24,200,953 
Bank  of  ceylon - call deposits	 191,169,876 	 30,361,209 
Total	  311,305,958 	 70,694,648 
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Gratuity provision has been made for all existing employees.However under the Gratuity Act No 12 of 
1983.	 Gratuity Liability arises only upon an employee completing continuous service of five years.	The 
following key assumptions were used in arriving at above gratuity liability.			 

		  2014	 2013

Discount interest rate	 7.05%	 10.64%		
Salary increment rate	 5%	 5%		
Staff turnover rate	 2.77%	 4.67%	
Retirement age	 60	 60		

15. Contributed Capital			 
	
As at 31st December	 2014	 2013
		  Rs.	 Rs.

Sri Lanka government fund	 25,584,808 	 25,584,808 
Assets taken-over from forest department	 10,714,815 	 10,714,815 
World bank - grant	 708,202 	 708,202 
C.A.D. british aid fund	 4,495,843 	 4,495,843 
Total	 41,503,668 	 41,503,668 

16. Staff Loan Revolving Fund				 
		
As at 31st December	 2014	 2013
		  Rs.	 Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the year	 225,543,133 	 218,784,628 
Staff loan interest received	 5,102,915 	 7,582,768 
Adjustment during the year	 (91,708)	 (824,263)
Total fund at the end of the year	 230,554,340 	 225,543,133 

Nominal value of utilized fund balance as at 31st December 	 196,135,203	 200,043,003
Unutilized fund balance as at 31st December	 34,510,845	 26,324,393

17. Retirement Benefit			 
	
As at 31st December	 2014	 2013
		  Rs.	 Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the year	 340,599,947 	 367,895,815 
charge for the year	 123,790,345 	 639,601 
Payment/payable during the year	 (28,459,149)	 (27,935,469)
Balance at the end of the year	 435,931,143 	 340,599,947 

18. Income Tax Payable				 
		
As at 31st December	 2014	 2013
		  Rs.	 Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the year	 88,581,787 	 (29,473,329)
With holding tax on deposits	 (30,153,705)	 (13,827,648)
Payment during the year	 (30,819,565)	 -   
Under provision of tax for 2013	 2,237,777 	 -   
Provision for income tax	 202,347,540 	 131,882,763 
Balance at the end of the year	 232,193,834 	 88,581,787 

19. Trade and Other Payables				 
		
As at 31st December	 2014	 2013
		  Rs.	 Rs.

Central bank- EPF	 14,086,637 	 12,964,959 
Labour department-ETF	 1,698,070 	 1,555,815 
Accrued expenses	 128,298,983 	 170,814,175 
Refundable tender deposits	 11,862,050 	 6,566,130 
Security deposits - except staff	 33,239,095 	 30,033,745 
Audit fees payable	 3,073,028 	 2,323,028 
Deposits by customers	 -   	 10,400 
Retention money	 13,969,943 	 10,118,269 
Other creditors	 165,386,186 	 43,223,330 
Conservator  of  forests	 964,283,581 	 661,562,629 
Stumpage - wild life department	 388,363 	 335,619 
Value added tax	 23,510,868 	 22,168,086 
Total	 1,359,796,803 	 961,676,185 
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Glossary of Financial Terms

1. 	 Accounting Policies
	 Specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices adopted by the Corporation in 

preparing and presenting financial statements.

2. 	 Amortization
	 The systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an intangible asset over its useful 

life.

3. 	 Accrual Basis
	 The principle that revenues and costs are matched with one another, irrespective of the 

period of receipt or payment.

4. 	 Cash and Cash Equivelants
	 Liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

5. 	 Revenue Reserves
	 Reserves available for investments.

6. 	 Value Addition
	 The quantum of wealth generated by the activities of the Corporation and its distribution.

7. 	 Current Ratio
	 Current assets divided by current liabilities.

8. 	 Depreciation
	 The systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.

9. 	 Gearing
	 Proportion of borrowings to capital employed.

10. 	 Fair value
	 Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between a knowledgeable,
	 willing buyer and a knowledgeable, willing seller in an arm's length transaction.

11. 	 Return on Assets (ROA)
	 Net income expressed as a percentage of total assets, used as a measure of profit ability 

and as a basis of intra-industry performance comparison.

12. 	 Deferred Taxation
	 The tax effect of temporary differences deferred to / from another period which would 

only qualify for inclusion on a tax return at a future date.
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